
June 25, 2019, Full House Legislative Oversight Committee Contents 
Agenda ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

Draft minutes from prior meeting ................................................................................................... 3 

Agency Snapshot and Executive Summary of the study of the Department of Labor, Licensing 
and Regulation ................................................................................................................................ 7 
Correspondence to and from the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation ....................... 13 
Agency Snapshot - Rural Infrastructure Authority ......................................................................... 33 
Committee Contact Information ..................................................................................................... 34 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  1



 

 

South Carolina 
House of Representatives  

 

 
 

Legislative Oversight Committee 
 
 

AMENDED AGENDA - TIME CHANGE 
 

Tuesday, June 25, 2019 
Room 110 - Blatt Building 

2:00 p.m., or immediately upon adjournment of the House, whichever is later 
Pursuant to Committee Rule 4.9, S.C. ETV shall be allowed access for internet 

streaming whenever technologically feasible. 
 

AGENDA 
 

 I. Approval of minutes  
 
 II. Discussion of the Study of the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation 
 

III. Opportunity for public input about the Rural Infrastructure Authority at 2:30 p.m. 
   
  For information about providing testimony to the House Legislative Oversight  
  Committee click here. 
 
  Individuals can sign up to testify by calling the House Legislative Oversight   
  Committee at 803-212-6810, emailing the Committee at hcommlegov@schouse.gov,  
  or signing up in person a few minutes prior to the meeting.  S.C. Code of Laws  
  Section 2-2-70 provides that all testimony given to the investigating committee must  
  be under oath. 
   
              An ongoing opportunity for public input is available on the Committee’s website,  
  which allows individuals to provide comments to the House Legislative Oversight  
  Committee anonymously. 
 
 IV. Discussion of Committee administrative matters 
 
 V. Adjournment 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  2



 
 
First Vice-Chair: 
Laurie Slade Funderburk 
 
Micajah P. (Micah) Caskey, IV 
Neal A. Collins 
Patricia Moore “Pat” Henegan 
William M. (Bill) Hixon 
Jeffrey E. (Jeff) Johnson 
Mandy Powers Norrell 
Tommy M. Stringer 
Bill Taylor 
Robert Q. Williams 
 
Jennifer L. Dobson 
Research Director 
 
Cathy A. Greer 
Administration Coordinator 

Chair Wm. Weston J. Newton 

 
Legislative Oversight Committee 

 
 
 

 

 
South Carolina House of Representatives 

 

Post Office Box 11867 

Columbia, South Carolina 29211 

Telephone: (803) 212-6810 • Fax: (803) 212-

6811 

Room 228 Blatt Building 

 
 
 
 
Gary E. Clary 
Chandra E. Dillard 
Lee Hewitt 
Joseph H. Jefferson, Jr. 
Marvin R. Pendarvis 
Robert L. Ridgeway, III 
Edward R. Tallon, Sr. 
John Taliaferro (Jay) West, IV 
Chris Wooten 
 
 
Charles L. Appleby, IV 
Legal Counsel 
 
Carmen J. McCutcheon Simon 
Research Analyst/Auditor 
 
Kendra H. Wilkerson 
Fiscal/Research Analyst 

 
Legislative Oversight Committee Meeting  

Wednesday, May 8, 2019 
Blatt Building Room 110 

 
Archived Video Available 
 

I. Pursuant to House Legislative Oversight Committee Rule 6.8, South Carolina 
ETV was allowed access for streaming the meeting.  You may access an archived 
video of this meeting by visiting the South Carolina General Assembly’s website 
(http://www.scstatehouse.gov) and clicking on Committee Postings and Reports, 
then under House Standing Committees click on Legislative Oversight.  Then, 
click on Video Archives for a listing of archived videos for the Committee. 

Attendance  

I. Pursuant to Committee Rule 3.1, the public-input meeting of the House 
Legislative Oversight Committee was called to order by Chairman Wm. Weston J. 
Newton. All members of the Committee were present for all or a portion of the meeting, 
except Representative Mandy Powers Norrell and Representative Tommy Stringer.  

Minutes 

I. Representative Edward R. Tallon, moved to approve the minutes from the meeting 
on January 28, 2019.  A roll call vote was held, and the motion passed.  
 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  3



   

2 
 

 

Discussion of Agenda and Procedure 

I. Chairman Newton stated that the purpose of this meeting was to discuss and then 
hear public testimony regarding the Economic Development, Transportation, 
Natural Resources and Regulatory Subcommittee’s study of the Department of 
Labor, Licensing and Regulation. Chairman Newton also provided an overview of 
the process of approving studies. 

Presentation of the Study of the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation 

I. Representative Ridgeway provided an overview of the Economic Development, 
Transportation, Natural Resources and Regulatory Subcommittee’s report on the 
study of the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation.  

 

Representative Tallon’s motion to approve 
the minutes from the meeting on January 14, 
2019: 

Yea Nay
Not Voting: 

Present 
Not Voting: 

Absent 

Micajah P. “Micah” Caskey, IV     

Gary E. Clary     

Neal A. Collins     

Chandra E. Dillard     

Patricia Moore “Pat” Henegan     

Lee Hewitt     

William M. “Bill” Hixon     

Laurie Slade Funderburk     

Joseph H. Jefferson, Jr.     

Jeffrey E. Johnson     

Marvin R. Pendarivs     

Mandy Powers Norrell      

Robert L. Ridgeway, III     

Tommy M. Stringer     

Edward R. “Eddie” Tallon, Sr.      

Bill Taylor     

John T. West     

Robert Q. Williams     

Christopher Sloan “Chris” Wooten     

Wm. Weston J. Newton     

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  4



   

3 
 

Public Input 

I. Members of the public provided testimony about the Department of Labor, 
Licensing and Regulation (LLR). Constituent testimony and Committee minutes 
summarizing testimony are not the comments or expression of the House Legislative 
Oversight Committee, any of its Subcommittees, the House of Representatives, or any 
of these entities staff. 
 
Before each person testifies, Chairman Weston Newton administered an oath to the 
person.  Below are the names of each person who testified and the time in the 
archived video at which the testimony begins.   

Ms. Sarah Wilbanks (07:10) 

Ms. Wilbanks testifies that she is an Occupational Therapist and the current 
Legislative Chair for the South Carolina Occupational Therapy Association 
(SCOTA). Ms. Wilbanks discusses how the Occupational Therapy Board within LLR 
interacts with occupational therapy practitioners in the state.  

Ms. Reah Smith (27:26) 

Ms. Smith testifies that she resides in Oconee County and is the Legislative Chair for 
the South Carolina Association of Realtors (SCR). Ms. Smith testified about several 
issues SCR has encountered with the Real Estate Commission of LLR, including 
staffing issues for the Real Estate Commission, use of nicknames in the LLC licensee 
database, and signage requirements.  

Mr. Ken Newhouse (32:05) 

Mr. Newhouse testifies he resides in Richland County and is the Chair of 
Governmental Affairs for the South Carolina Association of CPAs. Mr. Newhouse 
testifies about issues with receiving timely FOIA notices for meetings and concerns 
about new LLR policies being adopted without notice or input from the public. 

Mr. Robert Baldwin (35:56) 

Mr. Baldwin testifies that he resides in Charleston County and is a CPA. Mr. Baldwin 
discusses his concerns about the Board of Accountancy’s slow response time in 
licensing new CPAs, the Board’s inconsistency in applying educational requirements, 
and the lack of knowledge or experience in accountancy of those working for the 
Board.  

Mr. Christopher Jenkins (40:02)  

Mr. Jenkins testifies that he resides in Lexington County and is the CEO of the South 
Carolina Association of CPAs (SCAPA). Mr. Jenkins testifies about issues with 
resource allocation within LLR causing delays in licensing new CPAs and an inability 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  5



   

4 
 

to complete investigations. Mr. Jenkins also testifies about communication issues 
between LLR employees and the Board of Accountancy. 

Dr. Patricia Hill (46:33)  

Dr. Hill testifies that she resides in Greenville County and is the Legislative Chair of 
the South Carolina Association of Veterinarians. Dr. Hill testifies that veterinarians 
have had very similar experiences to previous speakers in dealing with LLR. Dr. Hill 
also states that the veterinarians in her association see there is a need and opportunity 
to improve communications and relationships with LLR.  

Discussion of Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation  

I. Ms. Emily Farr, Agency Director for the Department of Labor, Licensing and 
Regulation, under oath, addresses the committee and answers questions regarding the 
study and the public input.  
 

II. Members then ask constituents questions about their testimony. 

 

Discussion of Committee Administrative Matters 

I. Chairman Newton provides an overview of administrative matters regarding the 
legislative process and announces intent to continue the discussion of the study of 
the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation at the next meeting.  
 

II. There being no further business; the meeting adjourns. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  6



5 
 

AGENCY SNAPSHOT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 1.  Snapshot of agency’s history, mission, major programs, Fiscal Year 2017-18 resources, successes, and challenges.1

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  7



6 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 

Purpose of Oversight Study 

As stated in S.C. Code Ann. § 2-2-20(B), “[t]he purpose of these 
oversight studies and investigations is to determine if agency laws and 
programs within the subject matter jurisdiction of a standing 
committee: (1) are being implemented and carried out in accordance 
with the intent of the General Assembly; and (2) should be continued, 
curtailed, or eliminated.”  In making these determinations, the 
Subcommittee evaluates (1) the application, administration, 
execution, and effectiveness of the agency’s laws and programs,       
(2) the organization and operation of the agency, and (3) any 
conditions or circumstances that may indicate the necessity or 
desirability of enacting new or additional legislation pertaining to the 
agency.2

 

Study Process 

The House Legislative Oversight 
Committee’s (Committee) process 
for studying the Department of 
Labor, Licensing and Regulation 
(agency or LLR) includes actions by 
the full Committee; Economic 
Development, Transportation, and 
Natural Resources Subcommittee 
(Subcommittee); the agency; and 
the public.  A summary of the key 
dates and actions is included below 
in Figure 2. 

• December 19, 2017 - Prioritizes the agency for study 
• January 12, 2018 - Provides the agency with notice about the oversight process  
• January 23 - March 1, 2018 - Solicits input from the public about the agency in the form of an online survey 
• March 1, 2018 - Holds Meeting 1 to obtain public input about the agency 

• August 13, 2018 - Holds Meeting 2 with the agency to discuss an overview of its mission, history, resources, major 
programs, successes, challenges, and emerging issues 

• September 10, 2018 - Holds Meeting 3 with the agency to tour the Fire Academy and discuss the following agency 
divisions: Elevators and Amusement Rides and Immigration Compliance, Occupational Safety and Health Administration, 
and Wages and Child Labor 

• October 3, 2018 - Holds Meeting 4 with the agency to discuss the following agency divisions: Fire and Life Safety, and 
Professional and Occupational Licensing 

• November 1, 2018 - Holds Meeting 5 with the agency to discuss the agency’s support divisions and Subcommittee 
recommendations 

• May 1, 2015 - Submits its Annual Restructuring and Seven-Year Plan Report 
• February 12, 2016 - Submits its 2016 Annual Restructuring Report 
• September 2016 - Submits its FY 2015-16 Accountability Report/Annual Restructuring Report 
• September 2017 - Submits its FY 2016-17 Accountability Report/Annual Restructuring Report 
• April 20, 2018 - Submits its Program Evaluation Report 
• August - November 2018 - Meets with and responds to Subcommittee inquiries 
• September 2018 – Submits its FY 2017-18 Accountability Report/Annual Restructuring Report 

• January 23 - March 1, 2018 - Provides input about the agency via an online public survey 
• March 1, 2018 - Provides testimony about the agency to the full Committee 
• Ongoing - Submits written comments on the Oversight Committee's webpage on the General Assembly's website 

(www.scstatehouse.gov) 
 

Figure 2.  Summary of key dates and actions of the study process. 

Economic Development, Transportation, and Natural Resources Subcommittee Actions 

Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation Actions 

Public’s Actions 

Legislative Oversight Committee Actions 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  8

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/


7 
 

Recommendations 
 
The Subcommittee has 36 recommendations arising from its study of the agency.  Most involve statutory 
changes and are directed to the General Assembly.  Two recommendations are directed to state agencies.  
In the table below, the recommendations are sorted by the related agency division or program. 
 
Table 1.  Summary of recommendations. 

Recommendations to the General Assembly 

Division/Program Recommendations 

Occupational 
Safety and Health 
Administration 
(OSHA) 

1. Allow the required notice of hearings about employee health and safety 
regulations to be published in newspapers with electronic circulation by 
amending S.C. Code Ann. § 41-15-220(A).   

2. Provide a compliance mechanism for warrants and subpoenas related to OSHA 
investigations and authorize sanctions for non-compliance by amending S.C. 
Code Ann. § 41-15-260 and § 41-15-270.   

3. Clarify the process through which LLR issues citations and penalties for 
violations of employee health and safety regulations by amending S.C. Code 
Ann. § 41-15-280 and repealing § 41-15-300.   

4. Ensure LLR’s ability to maximize federal funding for its labor programs by 
codifying Proviso 81.7 from the 2018-19 General Appropriations Act. 

Wages and Child 
Labor 

5. Increase penalties for violations of laws related to payment of wages by 
amending S.C. Code Ann. § 41-10-80.   

6. Clarify penalty options for first-time violations of child labor regulations by 
amending S.C. Code Ann. § 41-13-25.   

7. Authorize employers to make use of current technology related to providing 
employee wage statements by updating S.C. Code Ann. § 41-10-30 and                   
§ 41-10-40.   

Elevators and 
Amusement 
Rides 

8. Clarify which amusement rides are subject to LLR permitting by defining “open 
to the public” in S.C. Code Ann. § 41-18-40.   

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  9



8 
 

Recommendations to the General Assembly 

Division/Program Recommendations 

State Fire 

9. Authorize the Office of State Fire Marshal to issue fines up to $1,000 for 
repeated fire code violations (i.e., those that remain uncorrected after 
provision of notice and time to correct) creating life safety issues for the public. 

10. Revise statutes to reflect duties and powers of the Office of State Fire Marshal 
by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 23-9-20 and repealing § 23-9-40, § 23-9-60,            
§ 23-9-110, and § 23-9-130.   

11. Clarify the authority of those acting on behalf of the Office of State Fire Marshal 
and allow the Office of State Fire Marshal to establish procedures to discipline 
certified fire marshals by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 23-9-30.   

12. Allow LLR’s Division of Fire and Life Safety to receive donations of equipment 
by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 23-49-120.   

13. Simplify the grant award process for the Volunteer Strategic Assistance and 
Fire Equipment (V-SAFE) Program and designate a revenue stream to support 
administration of the program by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 23-9-25.   

14. Identify all classes of fire equipment permits and licenses that are regulated by 
the Office of State Fire Marshal, allow for promulgation of regulations 
regarding requirements, and correct terminology by amending S.C. Code Ann. 
§ 23-9-45.   

15. Allow the Office of State Fire Marshal to enter fire or explosion sites without 
permission in cases of fatalities or serious injuries by amending S.C. Code Ann. 
§ 23-9-50.   

16. Reflect appropriate fees for duplication and documentation of files and the 
correct title of the Office of State Fire Marshal by updating S.C. Code Ann.               
§ 40-80-30.   

17. Eliminate an antiquated statutory reference to historical movement of the 
Office of State Fire Marshal and reflect current terminology by updating S.C. 
Code Ann. § 23-9-10.   

18. Ensure consistent use of terminology related to the State Fire Academy by 
amending S.C. Code Ann. § 23-10-10.   

19. Eliminate an unnecessary statute relating to wheelchair access ramps, S.C. 
Code Ann. § 23-9-35.   

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  10



9 
 

Recommendations to the General Assembly 

Division/Program Recommendations 

Professional and 
Occupational 
Licensing 

20. Require the Legislative Audit Council to assess, every 10 years, the need for 
continued regulation of each of the professions and occupations licensed by 
the boards administered by LLR. 

21. Eliminate the requirement for the LLR director to recommend professions and 
occupations for de-regulation by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 40-1-50(A).   

22. Clarify that LLR, not the professional and occupational licensing boards, selects 
and hires agency employees by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 40-1-50(A).   

23. Task licensing boards with advising LLR on statutory revisions and other 
matters by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 40-1-70.   

24. Amend disciplinary procedures for the Board of Chiropractic Examiners in S.C. 
Code Ann. § 40-9-31 to conform to current agency practices.   

25. Require the LLR attorney representing the state, rather than officers of the 
professional and occupational licensing boards, to sign and provide notice of 
formal accusations filed by several boards by amending S.C. Code Ann.                    
§ 40-15-180, § 40-55-130, and § 40-75-90 

26. Allow the Manufactured Housing Board, rather than an administrative hearing 
officer, to hear a case against a licensee of the board by amending S.C. Code 
Ann. § 40-29-60.   

27. Clarify the procedures for service of notice for disciplinary hearings and the 
role of disciplinary counsel in licensing investigations by amending S.C. Code 
Ann. § 40-1-90.  

28. Clarify that a nondisciplinary letter of caution issued by a licensing board is a 
private order by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 40-1-120.   

29. Clarify the difference between voluntary surrender and permanent 
relinquishment of a license by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 40-1-150.   

30. Clarify the confidentiality standards to be used during different stages of 
licensing investigations by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 40-1-190.   

31. Update the list of professional and occupational licensing boards administered 
by LLR by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 40-1-40(B).   

32. Authorize the Perpetual Care Cemetery Board to make use of current 
technology (e.g., email) by amending S.C. Code Ann. § 40-8-160.   

33. Remove outdated types of optometry licenses from S.C. Code Ann. § 40-37-20 
and § 40-37-420.   

34. Correct a typographical error, an incorrect statutory citation, and a reference 
to a definition that does not exist in statute by amending S.C. Code Ann.                 
§ 40-11-20, § 40-29-100, and § 40-59-270.   

 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  11



10 
 

Recommendations to State Agencies 

Division/ 
Program 

Recommendation to… Recommendations 

OSHA LLR’s OSHA division 
35. Partner with insurance companies to increase 

opportunities to educate employers about health and 
safety and encourage voluntary compliance. 

Professional 
and 
Occupational 
Licensing 

LLR and the 
Department of Health 
and Environmental 
Control  

36. Jointly make a recommendation to the Committee as to 
which agency should administer the Commission of 
Hearing Aid Specialists. 

 
 
 
There are no specific recommendations with regards to continuance of agency programs or elimination of 
agency programs.     
 
 
 

Internal Changes Implemented by Agency Related to Study Process 
 
LLR Director Farr testifies during the study process that the agency has expedited the formalization of its 
records retention policy and taken further steps to protect private information due in part to Committee 
questioning about records retention.3 
  

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  12



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  13



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  14



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  15



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  16



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  17



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  18



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  19



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  20



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  21



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  22



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  23



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  24



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  25



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  26



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  27



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  28



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  29



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  30



60 58

43
37

9

27
20

38

9
14

6

17

6 7 4

3.66
2.42

4.81

1.70

0.29

3.05

0.69

3.99

0.46
0.34

0.15

0.36

0.21 0.24

0.39

0.07 0.16
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90
In

 T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

FY 2018 Calls/Walk-ins vs. Licensees by Board Grouping

# Licensees # Calls #Walk-ins

A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 1

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  31



ATTACHMENT 2 

 

 

 

1

1 30 1 32

9 641

63 2

4

103
3

23 1 2 55

RACE/ETHNICITY

Labor State Fire POL Admin

8
4 8 6 8 15 8 6 2

4
7 6 13 12

19

4 4 3

1

13

8 16
18 22

34

28 22 7
5

4
10 14

10 13
8

13 8 3 1

<29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 >70

AGE

Labor State Fire POL Admin

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  32



ATTACHMENT 3 

 

Number of Employee Separations Per Month since August 2016 

 

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2016 4 4 2 3 5
2017 2 1 3 2 3 6 2 1 3 2 1 5
2018 7 2 8 6 4 12 6 5 5 6 3 7
2019 8 2 5 2 4

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  33



OBS Customer Service Survey and Phone Report, October 2018 - May 2019 

Grand Totals 4.63 4.57 4.65 4.24 1595 230122 

Board Group 
Overall 

Satisfaction 
Telephone 

Scores 
Staff 

Scores 
Website 
Scores 

# Survey 
Responses 
Received 

# Phone 
Calls 

Received 

Accounting, Geology 4.63 4.50 4.56 4.00 25 4582 

Appraisers 4.90 4.86 4.95 4.63 34  unavailable 

Architects, Engineers, Land Surveyors 4.54 4.56 4.60 4.14 71 6051 

Barber, Cosmetology, Massage 4.51 4.44 4.58 4.19 203 45910 

Building Codes, Contractors 4.63 4.42 4.65 4.27 107 24512 

Cemetery, Funeral, Auctioneer 4.50 4.83 4.65 3.92 21 2370 

Chiropractors, Occupational Therapy, 
Physical Therapy, Speech Audiology 4.58 4.59 4.63 4.21 124 10236 

Dentistry, Pilotage, Veterinary 4.74 4.75 4.74 4.36 76 8299 

Environmental, Forester, Landscape 
Architect, Soil Classifier, LP Gas 4.66 4.48 4.61 4.02 35 3791 

Medical, Podiatry 4.62 4.62 4.68 4.27 160 15820 

Nursing 4.59 4.50 4.60 4.21 315 20735 

Optometry, Optician, Dietetics, Long 
Term Care 4.67 4.58 4.60 4.17 76 3940 

Pharmacy 4.75 4.76 4.76 4.52 86 13396 

Real Estate 4.72 4.69 4.73 4.26 135 35791 

Residential Builders 4.64 4.53 4.63 4.27 123 22596 

Social Work, Psychology, Counselors 5.00 4.50 5.00 4.50 4 12093 

Grand Total 4.63 4.57 4.65 4.24 1595 230122 

Customer Service Survey Methodology 

Responses to customer service surveys are collected through a unique URL for each LLR customer service employee. 

Responses for each question can be rated N/A for not applicable, or from 1-5, with 1 being “Unsatisfied” and 5 being 

“Extremely Satisfied.” This individual data was then aggregated by board grouping, as staff are often shared between 

several boards. In this report, customer service survey questions are grouped by color. For the staff scores and website 

scores, we have weighted the questions. 

Below are the customer service survey questions: 

Rate your overall satisfaction with the service you received. 

You were able to make telephone contact with the appropriate staff during business hours and with minimal delays. 
Staff was courteous and polite while assisting you. (50% of staff score) 
Staff was knowledgeable and able to directly answer your questions. (25% of staff score) 
Staff was able to effectively resolve your issues in a timely manner. (12.5% of staff score) 
Your telephone messages and/or emails were responded to by staff within 24 hours. (12.5% of staff score) 
The information and forms located on the website were helpful and easily obtained. (50% of website score) 
The website was easy to access and navigate. (50% of website score) 

* As of the creation of this report, there is no available phone data for the Athletics Commission or the Real Estate

Appraisers Board. Also, there is no available customer service survey data for the Athletics Commission.

ATTACHMENT 4

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  34



ATTACHMENT 5 

BOARD OF NURSING LICENSEES BY COUNTY OF RESIDENCE 
 

Abbeville 477  Horry 4712 
Aiken 2091  Jasper 222 
Allendale 54  Kershaw 1101 
Anderson 3356  Lancaster 1091 
Bamberg 179  Laurens 810 
Barnwell 256  Lee 149 
Beaufort 2186  Lexington 5151 
Berkeley 2875  Marion 505 
Calhoun 273  Marlboro 314 
Charleston 7514  McCormick 67 
Cherokee 616  Newberry 515 
Chester 297  Oconee 987 
Chesterfield 580  Orangeburg 1074 
Clarendon 422  Pickens 1672 
Colleton 516  Richland 5923 
Darlington 922  Saluda 266 
Dillon 401  Spartanburg 4327 
Dorchester 2531  Sumter 1278 
Edgefield 298  Union 302 
Fairfield 222  Williamsburg 314 
Florence 3008  York 3470 
Georgetown 965    
Greenville 7503  TOTAL 73,116 
Greenwood 1170    
Hampton 154  

 
 
 

Out of Country 36 
Out of State 5694 
Did not provide agency with county of residence 605 
TOTAL 6335 

 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  35



ATTACHMENT 5 

REAL ESTATE COMMISSION LICENSEES BY COUNTY OF RESIDENCE 
 

Abbeville 61  Horry 5019 
Aiken 802  Jasper 152 
Allendale 19  Kershaw 329 
Anderson 1077  Lancaster 404 
Bamberg 17  Laurens 137 
Barnwell 51  Lee 40 
Beaufort 2988  Lexington 2343 
Berkeley 1348  Marion 93 
Calhoun 46  Marlboro 34 
Charleston 6461  McCormick 48 
Cherokee 141  Newberry 117 
Chester 55  Oconee 547 
Chesterfield 68  Orangeburg 223 
Clarendon 115  Pickens 614 
Colleton 238  Richland 3653 
Darlington 140  Saluda 53 
Dillon 52  Spartanburg 1656 
Dorchester 1107  Sumter 413 
Edgefield 95  Union 352 
Fairfield 98  Williamsburg 58 
Florence 558  York 1689 
Georgetown 791    
Greenville 4983  TOTAL 39,642 
Greenwood 300    
Hampton 57  

 
 
 

Out of Country 21 
Out of State 16,123 
Did not provide agency with county of residence 310 
TOTAL 16,454 

 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  36



 

 
First Vice-Chair: 

Laurie Slade Funderburk 

 
Micajah P. (Micah) Caskey, IV 

Neal A. Collins 

Patricia Moore (Pat) Henegan 

William M. (Bill) Hixon 

Jeffrey E. (Jeff) Johnson 

Marvin R. Pendarvis 

Tommy M. Stringer 

Bill Taylor 

Robert Q. Williams 

 

 

 

Jennifer L. Dobson 

Research Director 

 

Cathy A. Greer 

Administration Coordinator 

Chair Wm. Weston J. Newton 

 

Legislative Oversight Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

South Carolina House of Representatives 

 

Post Office Box 11867 

Columbia, South Carolina 29211 

Telephone: (803) 212-6810 • Fax: (803) 212-6811 

Room 228 Blatt Building 

 

 

 

 
 

Gary E. Clary 

Chandra E. Dillard 

Lee Hewitt 

Joseph H. Jefferson, Jr. 

Mandy Powers Norrell 

Robert L. Ridgeway, III 

Edward R. Tallon, Sr. 

John Taliaferro (Jay) West, IV 

Chris Wooten 

 

 

 

Charles L. Appleby, IV 

Legal Counsel 

 

Carmen J. McCutcheon Simon 

Research Analyst/Auditor 

 

Kendra H. Wilkerson 

Fiscal/Research Analyst 

 

 

May 23, 2019 

 

Via Email 

Ms. Emily Farr, Director 

South Carolina Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation 

110 Centerview Drive 

Columbia, South Carolina  29210 

 

Dear Director Farr: 

 

The Legislative Oversight Committee appreciates your continued cooperation with the oversight process.  At 

the Committee meeting on May 8, 2019, licensees and the professional associations that represent them raised 

concerns related to their experiences with the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation (LLR) and the 

licensing boards it administers.  I would ask you to work with these stakeholders to identify any solutions that 

may address the issues they have, including but not limited to the following: 

 

 Communication between licensees/professional associations and board members/staff; 

 Notification of licensees about board meetings and decisions; 

 Ability of boards to provide guidance to licensees about professional behavior; and 

 Fluctuations in staffing that delay the licensure and investigation processes or lead to an inability to 

sufficiently review qualifications such as continuing professional education. 

 

We look forward to hearing about your discussions with these stakeholders at the next full Committee meeting 

on Tuesday, June 25, 2019.  In addition, by Friday, June 14, 2019, please provide answers to the following 

questions that Committee members were unable to ask at the meeting due to time constraints.  

 

  

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  37



 

2 

 

Director Farr 

Page 2 

 

Agency Staffing 

1. Have any licensing boards requested additional staff?  If yes, which ones, and how were the requests 

addressed by the agency? 

2. What is the agency’s staff breakdown by race, gender, ethnicity, and age?  Please include information for 

each major division/department if possible. 

3. How many employees have left the agency since your appointment as Interim Director in 2016?  Please 

provide the number of employee separations per month since that time. 

 

Licensee Services 

4. How do the boards and/or agency staff address constituent concerns about licensure delays? 

5. For each board, what was the average time between receipt of a licensure application and issuance/denial 

of that license in FY18?  Please feel free to differentiate between different types of licenses (e.g., initial 

and renewal) and provide explanations of outliers as appropriate. 

6. Do you have a goal for staff response time to licensee inquiries? Do you track the response time?  If so, 

please provide any recent data you have, broken down by board if available.   

7. Does the agency provide licensee mailing lists to professional associations or others for the purposes of 

disseminating information about continuing education opportunities?  If not, why not? 

8. What problems may arise when a licensee’s name changes? 

9. Please address the concern raised at the meeting that board decisions are not shared with the licensees 

affected by those decisions.  

10. Do all boards comply with FOIA requirements for notifications of public meetings?  How does the 

agency announce meetings?  Please provide the date and time on which each of the last five public 

meetings of the Board of Accountancy, or any subdivisions, was announced.  

11. What plans, if any, do you have to improve relationships that licensing boards and staff have with 

licensees and their professional associations?  What plans, if any, do you have to meet with all boards 

and discuss how to better serve their licensees? 

 

Licensing Fees and Finances 

12. For each of the 11 boards that have had negative cash balances for more than one consecutive year, to 

what do you attribute this persistent deficit (e.g., unusually low fees, unusually high expenses, low 

number of licensees, etc.)? 

13. What is the agency’s plan to address the persistent budget deficits of several boards? 

14. In your March 15, 2019, response to Rep. Hixon’s Question 10, you indicated that although the agency 

accounts for board revenue with separate cost centers in SCEIS, “[a]ll revenue collected in the POL 

division of the Agency is deposited in its account with the State Treasurer.”  S.C. Code of Laws § 40-1-

50(D) states that “[f]ees must be deposited in accounts established for each respective board.”  Please 

explain the agency’s position on whether it is in compliance with this statutory requirement.  

 

 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  38

https://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/LLR/3.15.19_LLR_Response.pdf


 

3 

 

Director Farr 

Page 3 

 

Fingerprint Background Checks 

15. The Committee understands that the Department of Insurance collects fingerprints once from licensed 

insurance agents and that the fingerprints are thereafter kept on file by SLED and periodically rechecked. 

Does the agency believe it will be able to follow a similar procedure with the fingerprint background 

checks of licensees under the Real Estate Commission?  If not, why not? 

16. Will Real Estate Commission licensees whose fingerprints are already on file with SLED, such as those 

who are also licensed insurance agents, need to submit additional fingerprints? 

 

Other Licensing Issues 

17. Which practice acts authorize the issuance of advisory opinions?  Do any boards issue advisory opinions 

without explicit statutory authorization?  If not, why not?  

18. Does the agency anticipate any problems would be caused by a statutory requirement that licensees 

include their license number on communications with the public (e.g., business cards and advertisements) 

in order to facilitate verification of licensure? 

19. If available, please break down the licensees of the Board of Nursing and the Real Estate Commission by 

county of residence. 

 

If these inquiries would yield responses that are not an accurate reflection of the agency or if additional time is 

needed to respond, please contact Committee staff.  Thank you and your team for your service to the people of 

South Carolina and for your continued cooperation with the legislative oversight process.  We look forward to 

continuing our discussion of the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation at the next meeting. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Wm. Weston J. Newton 

 

cc: House Legislative Oversight Committee Members 

 

 

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  39



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  40



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  41



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  42



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  43



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  44



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  45



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  46



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  47



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  48



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  49



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  50



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  51



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  52



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  53



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  54



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  55



June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  56



To assist in financing qualified infrastructure projects that 
will protect public health, comply with environmental 
quality standards, and support economic opportunities.

Organizational Units
Grants   •   Loans

Organizational Units
Grants   •   Loans

Resources
(FY 17‐18)

Employees
9 filled FTE positions 
at the end of the year

Funding

$166,141,450 
Includes appropriations and 

State Revolving Fund 
expenditures, which are not 

appropriated

Resources
(FY 17‐18)

Employees
9 filled FTE positions 
at the end of the year

Funding

$166,141,450 
Includes appropriations and 

State Revolving Fund 
expenditures, which are not 

appropriated

History
The Rural Infrastructure 
Authority was created in 
2010 and began operating 
in 2012, approving its first 

grants in 2013. The 
administration of two loan 
programs was transferred 
to RIA from the Budget 
and Control Board in 

2015. 

History
The Rural Infrastructure 
Authority was created in 
2010 and began operating 
in 2012, approving its first 

grants in 2013. The 
administration of two loan 
programs was transferred 
to RIA from the Budget 
and Control Board in 

2015. 

Agency 
Mission
Agency 
Mission

Current:

• Developing expertise in small communities

• Attaining sustainability with inadequate 
resources to invest in infrastructure

• Overcoming resistance to regional 
approaches

• Using available 
funds to award 
$109.6M in grants 
and close nearly 
$350M in loans 
since the agency’s 
creation

• Helping to resolve 
health and 
environmental 
concerns, create 
jobs, and lower 
utility rates 

• Training 
communities to 
identify financial 
resources for 
infrastructure 
improvements

Emerging:

• Planning for future agency leadership

• Identifying funding gaps and 
coordinating assistance

• Assessing statewide needsCh
al
le
ng

es
Id
en

tif
ie
d 
by
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

Successes
Identified by the agency

Major Deliverables
(FY 17‐18)

• Awarded $14M in grants

• Closed $120M in loans

• Assisted 291 local 
governments with 
information

Major Deliverables
(FY 17‐18)

• Awarded $14M in grants

• Closed $120M in loans

• Assisted 291 local 
governments with 
information

Sources: Agency PER (April 2019), Accountability Report (September 2018), and website.

Figure Note: RIA focuses on water infrastructure projects, including water and waste water systems and storm water drainage facilities.

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  57



Committee Mission
Determine if agency laws and programs are being implemented and carried out in 
accordance with the intent of the General Assembly and whether they should be 

continued, curtailed or eliminated. Inform the public about state agencies.

Website: http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/
HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee.php

Phone Number: 803‐212‐6810

Email Address: HCommLegOv@schouse.gov

Location: Blatt Building, Room 228

June 25, 2019, LOC Meeting Packet Page  58


	June 25, 2019, Meeting Packet
	Amended Agenda (Time Change) 6.25.19
	05.08.19 Meeting Minutes
	Agency Snapshot and Executive Summary Subcommittee Study - LLR
	Agency Snapshot
	Figure 1.  Snapshot of agency’s history, mission, major programs, Fiscal Year 2017-18 resources, successes, and challenges.

	Executive Summary
	Purpose of Oversight Study
	Figure 2.  Summary of key dates and actions of the study process.

	Recommendations
	Table 1.  Summary of recommendations.

	Internal Changes Implemented by Agency Related to Study Process


	6.14.19 LLR Response to Committee
	5.23.19 Committee Letter to LLR
	3.15.19 LLR Response to Subcommittee
	Agency Snapshot - RIA
	All Meetings - Committee Contact Slide Information



